Exhibit A



# Milwaukie Urban Renewal Plan

Adopted by the City of Milwaukie Ordinance No. August 25, 2016

ECONorthwest Elaine Howard Consulting, LLC

List of Participants Mavor: Mark Gamba **City Council:** Scott Churchill, Position 1 Lisa Batey, Position 2 Wilda Parks, Position 3 Karin Power, Position 4 Planning Commission: Sine Adams, Chair Shaun Lowcock, Vice Chair Shane Abma Shannah Anderson Adam Argo Scott Barbur Greg Hemer City Manager: Bill Monahan **Community Development Director:** Alma Flores Finance Director: **Casey Camors** Planning Director: Dennis Egner Associate Planner Vera Kolias Alicia Martin Administrative Specialist II Urban Renewal Advisory Group: City Councilor Lisa Batey, Chair City Manager Bill Monahan (Ex-Officio) Casey Camors, Finance Director (Ex-Officio) Sine Adams, Planning Commission Chair Ray Bryan, Historic Milwaukie Neighborhood Kim Travis, Ardenwald Neighborhood Zac Perry, Linwood Neighborhood Kathy Lyle, Downtown Business Association Neil Hankerson, business owner Troy Reichlein, business owner Dave Knight, business owner Kimberly Maguire, business owner Tory McVay, North Clackamas School District Bob Cochran, Clackamas Community College Gary Barth, North Clackamas Parks and Recreation District Fire Chief Fred Charlton, Clackamas Fire District No. 1 Christa Bosserman Wolfe, Clackamas County Consultant Team: ECONorthwest - Nick Popenuk, Ali Danko, Lizzie Gooding Elaine Howard Consulting LLC - Elaine Howard

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	DEFINITIONS	4
II.	INTRODUCTION	6
III.	GOALS AND OBJECTIVES	9
IV.	OUTLINE OF MAJOR URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT ACTIVITIES	12
V.	URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS	12
VI.	PROPOSED LAND USES, MAX DENSITIES AND BUILDING REQUIREMENTS	16
VII.	PROPERTY ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION	18
VIII.	RELOCATION METHODS	18
IX.	TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OF THE PLAN	19
X.	FUTURE AMENDMENTS TO PLAN	20
XI.	DURATION OF THE PLAN	21
XII.	RELATIONSHIP TO LOCAL OBJECTIVES	22
XIII.	APPENDIX A: LEGAL DESCRIPTION	33

## I. DEFINITIONS

"Advisory Group" means the committee composed of public officials and stakeholders to provide input on the Milwaukie Urban Renewal Plan. Those members are identified on the acknowledgement page of the urban renewal plan.

"Redevelopment Commission" means the Milwaukie Redevelopment Commission. This Redevelopment Commission is the urban renewal agency responsible for administration of the urban renewal plan. In Milwaukie, the Redevelopment Commission is the Milwaukie City Council.

"Annual report" means annual report on impacts to taxing jurisdictions and former year and following year budgets as required in ORS 457.460.

"Area" means the properties and rights of way located with the Milwaukie urban renewal boundary.

"Blight" is defined in ORS 457.010(1)(A-E) and identified in the ordinance adopting the urban renewal plan.

"City" means the city of Milwaukie, Oregon.

"City Council" or "Council" means the City Council of the city of Milwaukie.

"Comprehensive Plan" means the city of Milwaukie comprehensive land use plan and its implementing ordinances, policies and standards.

"County" means Clackamas County.

"Fiscal year" means the year commencing on July 1 and closing on June 30.

"Frozen base" means the total assessed value including all real, personal, manufactured and utility values within an urban renewal area at the time of adoption. The County Assessor certifies the assessed value after the adoption of an urban renewal plan.

"Increment" means that part of the assessed value of a taxing district attributable to any increase in the assessed value of the property located in an urban renewal area, or portion thereof, over the assessed value specified in the certified statement.

"Maximum indebtedness" means the amount of the principal of indebtedness included in a plan pursuant to ORS 457.190 and does not include indebtedness incurred to refund or refinance existing indebtedness.

"Milwaukie Transportation Systems Plan (TSP)" means the transportation system plan adopted by the Milwaukie City Council.

"ORS" means the Oregon revised statutes and specifically Chapter 457, which relates to urban renewal.

"Planning Commission" means the Milwaukie Planning Commission.

"Revenue Sharing" means sharing tax increment proceeds as defined in ORS 457.470.

"Tax increment financing (TIF)" means the funds that are associated with the division of taxes accomplished through the adoption of an urban renewal plan.

"Tax increment revenues" means the funds allocated by the assessor to an urban renewal area due to increases in assessed value over the frozen base within the area.

"Under-levy" means taking less than the available tax increment in any year as defined in ORS 457.455.

"Urban renewal agency" or "Agency" means an urban renewal agency created under ORS 457.035 and 457.045. This agency is responsible for administration of the urban renewal plan.

"Urban renewal area" means a blighted area included in an urban renewal plan or an area included in an urban renewal plan under ORS 457.160.

"Urban renewal plan" or "Plan" means a plan, as it exists or is changed or modified from time to time, for one or more urban renewal areas, as provided in ORS 457.085, 457.095, 457.105, 457.115, 457.120, 457.125, 457.135 and 457.220.

"Urban renewal project" or "project" means any work or undertaking carried out under ORS 457.170 in an urban renewal area.

"Urban renewal report" or "Report" means the official report that accompanies the urban renewal plan pursuant to ORS 457.085(3).

## II. INTRODUCTION

The Milwaukie Urban Renewal Plan (Plan) implements the planning efforts from Moving Forward Milwaukie. The Moving Forward Milwaukie project began in June 2012 and was completed in December 2015. The goal of the Moving Forward Milwaukie project was to remove barriers and encourage appropriate development in Milwaukie's commercial areas through revisions to the policies and regulations guiding development in Milwaukie's commercial areas: downtown Milwaukie; central Milwaukie; and the "neighborhood main streets" of 32nd and 42nd Avenues. As a result of those planning efforts, the Central Milwaukie Land Use and Transportation Plan and the Milwaukie Downtown and Riverfront Land Use Framework Plan were adopted by the City Council. Those two documents contain goals and objectives and projects to be implemented within the two areas. An additional component of the planning process was specific economic site development opportunity analyses. These analyses found that developing specific sites in downtown and Central Milwaukie was not financially feasible without incentives. This urban renewal plan contains the tools to assist in making development in Milwaukie financially feasible.

The Plan has been developed for the Milwaukie City Council (City Council) with the cooperative input of an Urban Renewal Advisory Group (Advisory Group) and additional community input.

The Advisory Group met four times to review components of the Plan and Report Accompanying the Plan (Report), specifically the boundary, goals and objectives, projects, amendment procedures, duration of the Plan, financing and draft Plan and Report. The Advisory Group voted unanimously with one abstention, to forward the Plan and Report to the Milwaukie Redevelopment Commission for their consideration.

Several additional opportunities were available for public input including an Open House on April 20, 2016, two First Friday events, and two Farmer's Market events. Staff and the consultant provided background information on the proposed plan, projects and on the process for adoption of an urban renewal plan. Information was also placed on the city's website.

In addition, the consultant and city staff briefed the Clackamas County Board of County Commissioners in July, 2016.

There was also opportunity for public input at the Milwaukie Redevelopment Commission (Redevelopment Commission) meeting, the Milwaukie Planning Commission (Planning Commission) meeting, and the City Council meeting.

The Plan contains goals, objectives, and projects for the development of the Milwaukie Urban Renewal Area (Area). The overall purpose of the Plan is to use tax increment financing (TIF) to overcome obstacles to the proper development of the Area.

The purpose of urban renewal is to improve specific areas of a city that are poorly developed or underdeveloped, called blighted areas in ORS 457. These areas can have old or deteriorated buildings, public spaces that need improvements, streets and utilities that are inadequate or in poor condition, a complete lack of streets and utilities altogether, or other obstacles to development. The Area has infrastructure needs as identified in the Report and specifically cited in the ordinance for adoption of the urban renewal plan.

Urban renewal allows for the use of tax increment financing (TIF), a financing source that is unique to urban renewal, to fund its projects. Tax increment revenues – the amount of property taxes generated by the increase in total assessed value in the urban renewal area from the time the urban renewal area is first established – are used to repay borrowed funds. The funds borrowed are used to pay for urban renewal projects.

In general, urban renewal projects can include construction or improvement of streets, utilities, and other public facilities; assistance for rehabilitation or redevelopment of property; acquisition and re-sale of property (site assembly) from willing sellers; and improvements to public spaces. The specific projects to be approved in this Plan are outlined in Sections IV and V.

Urban renewal is put into effect when the local government (the City of Milwaukie, in this case) adopts an urban renewal plan. The urban renewal plan defines the urban renewal area, states goals and objectives for the area, lists projects and programs that can be undertaken, provides a dollar limit on the funds borrowed for urban renewal projects, and states how the plan may be changed in the future.

The Area, shown in Figure 1, consists of approximately 260.62 total acres: 168.13 acres of land in parcels and 92.49 acres of public right-of-way.

The Plan will be administered by the Redevelopment Commission, which was established by the Milwaukie City Council as the city's Urban Renewal Agency. Substantial changes to the plan must be approved by the City Council as outlined in Section X of this Plan.

The Plan is accompanied by the Report that contains additional information, as required by ORS 457.085. The technical information in the Report includes:

- A description of the physical, social, and economic conditions in the area;
- Expected impact of the Plan, including fiscal impact in light of increased services;
- Reasons for selection of each Area in the Plan;
- The relationship between each project to be undertaken and the existing conditions;
- The estimated total cost of each project and the source of funds to pay such costs;
- The anticipated completion date of each project;
- The estimated amount of funds required in the Area, and the anticipated year in which the debt will be retired;
- A financial analysis of the Plan;
- A fiscal impact statement that estimates the impact of tax increment financing upon all entities levying taxes upon property in the urban renewal area; and
- A relocation report.

It is anticipated that the Plan will take 29 years to implement. The maximum amount of indebtedness (amount of tax increment financing for projects and programs) that may be issued for the Plan is \$92,500,000.

Future amendments will be listed numerically in this section of the Plan and then incorporated into the Plan document and noted by footnote as to amendment number and date adopted.





## III. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The goals of the Plan represent the basic intents and purposes. Accompanying each goal are objectives, which generally describe how the Redevelopment Commission intends to achieve the goals. The urban renewal projects identified in Sections IV and V of the Plan are the specific means of meeting the objectives. The goals relate to adopted plans, as detailed in Section XI, and were developed with input from the Milwaukie Urban Renewal Advisory Group. The goals and objectives will be pursued as economically as is feasible and at the discretion of the Redevelopment Commission. The goals and objectives are not ranked by priority.

## Goal 1: PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

- Provide opportunities for public input throughout the implementation process.
- Engage and inform stakeholders to maximize diverse participation in the revitalization of the downtown and Central Milwaukie.
- Ensure the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the urban renewal implementation process by providing accurate and timely information and genuinely encouraging public input and involvement.

#### **Objectives:**

- 1. Utilize ad hoc Advisory Groups to review major changes to projects, programs or goals and objectives in the Plan as identified in the Amendments section of the Plan in meetings that are open to the public.
- 2. Public participation might involve public meetings, surveys, open houses, workshops, polling, citizen's Advisory Groups and other forms of direct involvement with the public with the aim of offering opportunities to a diverse and typically unengaged groups of our citizenry.
- 3. Establish an ongoing Citizens' Advisory Group to assist the Redevelopment Commission in decisions regarding plan implementation as identified in the Amendments section of the Plan.

#### Goal 2: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT/DEVELOPMENT

- Reactivate Main Street to reestablish and strengthen lively storefront retail character with a pedestrian emphasis and 18-hour use.
- Enhance economic opportunities in downtown and Central Milwaukie.
- Support a downtown that is lively and active and includes a range of housing options.
- Complement, protect, and promote the continued growth and vitality of current businesses.
- Remove barriers and constraints to development.
- Capitalize on the light rail investment to serve as a catalyst for future investment and development.
- Minimize the potential displacement of existing residents and business that may result from implementation of the Plan.

#### **Objectives:**

1. Invest in catalyst projects that leverage public-private partnerships, incentives, and other tools that contribute to advancing multiple objectives of the Urban Renewal Plan.

- 2. Support the development of transit-oriented residential, commercial, employment and recreational uses that will benefit from and support light rail.
- 3. Implement pedestrian and bicycle system improvements that will enhance connectivity between downtown and central Milwaukie and surrounding residential and commercial areas.
- 4. Create a tool kit of Public-Private Partnership (PPP) tools that can be used to invest in appropriate catalyst projects.
- 5. Promote programs that help mitigate the impacts of gentrification by assisting existing businesses with their growth and viability.
- 6. Develop and implement wayfinding systems plans for the downtown and Central Milwaukie areas.
- 7. Encourage adaptive re-use of developed sites with vacant or underperforming buildings.
- 8. Encourage a mix of retail uses to support a downtown that is lively and active.
- 9. Encourage housing as part of new-mixed use development.
- 10. Proactively encourage development on vacant parcels.
- 11. Make publicly-owned sites available to developers.
- 12. Support affordable housing development.
- 13. Work with other agencies and the private sector to develop and implement anti-displacement strategies.

## Goal 3: INFRASTRUCTURE: PUBLIC SPACES and TRANSPORTATION

- Provide adequate infrastructure and public amenities to support new development.
- Enhance McLoughlin Boulevard as the primary entry point into downtown Milwaukie from the north and south.
- Improve pedestrian connections from the downtown commercial area to Riverfront Park and the Trolley Trail to enhance the sense of place for downtown visitors.
- Improve significant parks and open spaces.
- Improve access to and within Central Milwaukie for pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicles.

#### **Objectives:**

- 1. Improve connectivity in Downtown Milwaukie including streetscape improvements.
- 2. Enhance existing downtown parks.
- 3. Assist with funding of streetscape improvements (Public Area Requirements identified in the Public Works Standards) for catalyst projects.
- 4. Upgrade pedestrian and bicycle connections across McLoughlin Boulevard.
- 5. Provide gateway and entryway improvements along McLoughlin Boulevard.
- 6. Construct the South Downtown Plaza.
- 7. Provide additional public space amenities in Central Milwaukie.

- 8. Address transportation infrastructure deficiencies for Central Milwaukie.
- 9. Improve connectivity within the Central Milwaukie district with easily accessible multimodal pathways that are safe and attractive.
- 10. Facilitate creation of a more connected and complete street network within Central Milwaukie, especially through the Murphy and McFarland opportunity sites.
- 11. Improve external connections to the Central Milwaukie district.
- 12. Assist in the development of parking solutions in Downtown Milwaukie.

## Goal 4: SENSE OF PLACE

- Build on existing assets Downtown, including local businesses, existing buildings, and the City's unique character.
- Foster a sense of place in Central Milwaukie by enhancing the identity of the area.
- Maintain an overall character complementary to and protective of surrounding neighborhoods.
- Feature the natural environment, especially the Willamette River.
- Strengthen Main Street as a source of pride and to ensure economic success.

#### Objectives:

- 1. Promote development of gateway and entryway projects.
- 2. Install downtown and Central Milwaukie wayfinding signage and heritage plaques.
- 3. Promote high-quality, urban design that is complementary to surrounding areas.
- 4. Employ parking management measures as needed to limit potential negative impacts of new development on residential parking needs.
- 5. Explore public-private partnerships to provide additional public space in Central Milwaukie.
- 6. Assist in the completion of streetscape improvements (Public Area Requirements) in Downtown Milwaukie.
- 7. Assist in improvements to existing and planned parks, plazas, and open spaces.

## Goal 5: FISCAL STEWARDSHIP

• Work with taxing jurisdictions to both inform them of the annual project and financial activities of the urban renewal area and to evaluate opportunities to share tax increment revenues.

#### **Objectives:**

- 1. Send a copy of the annual report required by ORS 457.460 and financial report to all taxing jurisdictions, informing them of the activities of the urban renewal area.
- 2. Notify taxing jurisdictions of revenue sharing responsibilities and the timing of those responsibilities.
- 3. Reimburse city for annual costs in administering the urban renewal area.

## IV. OUTLINE OF MAJOR URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT ACTIVITIES

The projects and activities within the Area are divided into the following main categories:

Development/Economic Development Infrastructure: Transportation Downtown and Central Milwaukie Public Amenities: Parks and Open Space Debt Service and Plan Administration

## V. URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS

Urban renewal projects authorized by the Plan are described below.

## A. Development/Economic Development

#### 1. Pre-Development Assistance for Development Opportunities

Assist with the up-front costs of development on a site such as technical assistance, feasibility studies, and site planning, to name a few. Providing this assistance can incentivize investment in a development project.

#### 2. Tenant Improvements

The goal of this program is to partner with downtown property and/or new business owners to encourage and fund high-quality tenant improvements to the interiors of vacant commercial spaces. The program would assist property owners in attracting businesses to locations that are difficult and costly to renovate, and incentivize new retail and restaurant businesses to locate within the Project Area.

3. Small Business Development Fund

The goal of this program is to provide funds and/or financing for things such as equipment and machinery, to help small and micro-businesses expand or become established in Milwaukie.

4. Developer Assistance

Develop public/private partnership tools that may include but not be limited to programs such as façade/storefront improvement, retail and food-related tenant Improvement, a small business start-up fund, developer assistance (for catalytic projects: land assembly, SDC/permit write down, assistance with public area requirements, green building or energy assistance, parking, utility relocations, adaptive re-use and other assistance), community economic development activities such as a bike share, affordable housing assistance (including but not limited to acquisition of land for affordable housing, rent stabilization, and other anti-displacement strategies), technical assistance, feasibility studies, and site planning.

5. Downtown Main Street Enhancements

Urban renewal could fund a portion of some activities included in a Main Street Program in downtown, focusing on four elements: Design, Economic Vitality, Organization, and Promotions. The intent of a Main Street program is to work collaboratively with both private organizations and established City committees to achieve the following broad goals: create a visually appealing downtown; assist existing businesses in identifying and taking advantage of business opportunities and encourage prospective

new businesses to locate in Downtown Milwaukie; develop a highly-functioning Main Street organization; and promote the program and Downtown Milwaukie. Urban renewal expenditures would focus on design, planning, and capital projects related to the downtown Main Street corridor.

## B. Infrastructure: Transportation Downtown

1. McLoughlin Boulevard Improvements

Improve the section of McLoughlin Boulevard north of Harrison Street to enhance pedestrian safety and signal visitors that they are entering downtown. Upgrade sidewalks where needed.

2. McLoughlin Boulevard Intersection Upgrades

Improve all existing crossings of McLoughlin Boulevard, using better signage and extended crossing times and distinctive crosswalk paving. Construct improvements at Harrison Street, Monroe Street, Jackson Street, Jefferson Street, and Washington Street to enhance bike/pedestrian crossings.

3. Pedestrian Bridge across McLoughlin Boulevard

Establish a dedicated bicycle and pedestrian connection across McLoughlin Boulevard.

4. Parking Solutions

Develop a variety of parking solutions, such as creative parking management tools, including the potential assistance in the development of structured parking as part of a larger mixed-use development that would service downtown uses.

5. Streetscape Improvements

Improvements to public spaces along streets have been installed at some locations in Downtown Milwaukie, but there are many blocks where the improvements have not been constructed. This project would assist in the installation of sidewalk bulb-outs, lighting, wider sidewalks, and pedestrian amenities consistent with the required public area street standards in Downtown Milwaukie.

## C. Infrastructure: Transportation Central Milwaukie

1. Bike/Pedestrian Path Connections

The goal is to provide connections to and through Central Milwaukie for pedestrians and bicyclists. The projects include improving bicycle routes and pedestrian ways along Harrison Street, Railroad Avenue, Oak Street, 37th Avenue, and 29th Avenue Provide connections to and through Central Milwaukie for pedestrians and bicyclists as designated in the Central Milwaukie Land Use & Transportation Plan and the Transportation Systems Plan. These connections include improvements on Campbell Street and Railroad Avenue. These improvements would enhance pedestrian connections and improve bike trails and facilities to increase safe and convenient multimodal access throughout the district. Designate and improve Primary Bicycle Routes along Harrison Street, Railroad Avenue, Oak Street, 37<sup>th</sup> Avenue, and 29<sup>th</sup> Avenue. Implement features to enhance pedestrian and cyclist safety.

Create a bicycle and pedestrian connection through the McFarland site from Railroad Ave to Oak Street which would help to provide better connectivity through Central Milwaukie. It will also provide a more direct connection from Railroad Avenue to the Monroe Street Neighborhood Greenway.

Create a bicycle and pedestrian connection through the Murphy Site from 31<sup>st</sup> Avenue to Meek Street in order to provide a north-south connection to central Milwaukie from the 29<sup>th</sup> Avenue bikeway. This

project would also include a path through the Clackamas County Housing Authority property north of the Murphy site.

Safe pedestrian connections do not currently exist along Oak, Myrtle, Penzance Streets and through the Milwaukie Marketplace commercial area. This project would develop and improve pedestrian connections along Oak, Myrtle, and Penzance Streets and the Milwaukie Marketplace.

2. Improved Access to Opportunity Sites

This project would provide improved vehicle access to the Murphy and McFarland development opportunity sites in Central Milwaukie, which would encourage investment in development of the sites.

3. Highway 224 Intersection Upgrades

This project would improve pedestrian crossings at 37th Avenue, Oak Street, Monroe Street, and Harrison Street. Improve intersection crossing safety for bicyclists at Washington Street and Oak Street.

4. Improve Transit Stops

This project would provide transit shelters as sites are developed and to ensure excellent transit service to Central Milwaukie. It would also add Transit Tracker and LED lighting units at main stops along bus routes.

5. Monroe Street Greenway Includes Monroe Street/Highway224

This project would implement central Milwaukie and downtown improvements for the Monroe Street Neighborhood Greenway which would implement the design concepts developed under an Oregon Department of Transportation grant and are expected to include lane striping, signage, and the application of sharrows, and potential traffic diverters.

## D. Public Amenities: Parks and Open Space

1. South Downtown Plaza

As identified in the South Downtown Concept Plan, this project would construct a public plaza at the intersection of Adams Street and Main Street that connects the new light rail station with Main Street and creates a focal point at the south end of downtown.

2. Riverfront Park

This project would fund implementation of Phases 3 and 4 of the Riverfront Park master plan, which include a plaza, an amphitheater, a fountain, large restroom facilities, and additional landscaping.

3. Dogwood Park

This project would fund improvements to Dogwood Park as outlined in the South Downtown Concept Plan. An expanded Dogwood Park would be integrated to the north and east with the South Downtown Plaza and Main Street streetscape improvements, and to the south and west with the Kellogg Natural Area. A refined design for the South Downtown Plaza will include integration with Dogwood Park and will identify key improvements for the area.

4. Scott Park

This project would fund completion of remaining phases of improvements to Scott Park per the 1990 Scott Park Master Plan. Specific projects to be determined.

## 5. New Parks and Open Spaces in Central Milwaukie

There are currently no parks in Central Milwaukie. This project would fund the development of new parks and opens spaces to serve Central Milwaukie as underdeveloped sites are preparing to develop. The project could also include exploring a partnership with Union Pacific Railroad to turn the small area at Railroad Avenue and Oak Street into a public park or install park improvements at the Murphy and McFarland sites.

## 6. Gateway/Entryway Improvements on Mcloughlin Boulevard

This project would install gateway and entryway signage at the north and south entrances to downtown along McLoughlin Boulevard. It would use elements such as gateway features, plantings, lighting, and related improvements to draw more traffic off of McLoughlin Boulevard and into downtown.

## 7. Wayfinding Signage and Heritage Plaques

This project would fund the implementation of the 2016 downtown Wayfinding Systems Plan, including the installation of wayfinding signage and kiosks to aid residents and visitors in exploring Milwaukie by providing easy access to cultural and recreational opportunities within an area that can be easily accessed by foot, bicycle, and transit. This project would also fund the installation of heritage plaques to celebrate the architectural history of the city and describe Milwaukie's heritage and culture.

## 8. Kronberg Park

This project would fund the implementation of the adopted 2015 Kronberg Park Master Plan, which includes the construction of a pathway in Kronberg Park to connect Kellogg Lake to south downtown.

#### 9. Kellogg Dam Removal

The Kellogg Dam currently blocks fish passage through Kellogg Creek. This project would replace the McLoughlin Boulevard Bridge over Kellogg Creek, remove the dam, and restore habitat, as well as construct a bike/pedestrian undercrossing between downtown and Riverfront Park.

## E. Debt Service and Plan Administration

This activity would allow for the repayment of costs associated with the implementation of the Milwaukie Urban Renewal Plan. It also includes ongoing administration and any financing costs associated with issuing long- and short-term debt, relocation costs and other administrative costs, including the potential repayment of costs for any amendments of the urban renewal plan.

## VI. PROPOSED LAND USES, MAXIMUM DENSITIES AND BUILDING REQUIREMENTS

The proposed land uses, densities, and building requirements for the Area will comply with the Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan and Milwaukie Municipal Code as stated in those documents and incorporated herein by reference. If those documents change, those changes will be automatically incorporated into this Plan. The specific zones within the Area are:

#### Medium and High Density Residential:

The medium and high density residential zones are intended to create and maintain higher density residential neighborhoods that blend a range of housing types with a limited mix of neighborhood-scale commercial, office, and institutional uses.

## **Downtown Zones:**

The downtown zones are Downtown Mixed Use Zone DMU and Open Space Zone OS. The zones are shown on Figure 19.304-1. These zones implement the Town Center and Public land use designations in the Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan. The downtown zones implement the Downtown and Riverfront Land Use Framework Plan and Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan.

The downtown and riverfront area is envisioned as the focus of the community. Two zones are designated to distinguish between areas intended for public open space and those intended for downtown development. Specific use, development, and design standards are adopted for the downtown zones to assure an active, attractive, and accessible environment for shoppers, employees, and residents.

#### Downtown Mixed Use (DMU)

The Downtown Mixed Use Zone provides for a wide range of uses, including retail, office, commercial, and residential—that will bring visitors to the downtown to live, work, shop, dine, and recreate. The desired character for this zone is a pedestrian-friendly and vibrant urban center, with a prominent main street and connections to the riverfront, and which includes buildings that are built to the right-of-way and oriented toward the pedestrian, with primary entries located along streets rather than parking lots.

#### Open Space (OS)

The Open Space Zone provides a specific zone to accommodate open space, park, and riverfront uses. The Open Space Zone is generally applied to lands that are in public ownership along the Willamette River, Kellogg Creek, Spring Creek, and Johnson Creek in the downtown area. The desired character for the Open Space Zone includes parkland, open space, and riverfront amenities.

## Community Shopping (C-CS):

Development shall be a community-scale shopping center including uses such as department store uses; drug and/or variety store uses; food supermarkets; and retail specialty shops.

#### **Business Industrial (BI):**

This section is adopted to implement the policies of the Comprehensive Plan for industrial land uses providing a mix of clean, employee-intensive, industrial and office uses, with associated services, in locations supportive of mass transit and the regional transportation network.

#### General Mixed-Use (GMU):

The General Mixed Use Zone is intended to recognize the importance of central Milwaukie as a primary commercial center and promote a mix of uses that will support a lively and economically robust district. It is also intended to ensure high-quality urban development that is pedestrian-friendly and complementary to the surrounding area.

#### Limited Commercial (C-L):

The Limited Commercial Zone is intended to allow small-scale commercial services within residential neighborhoods. These services provide convenience and whose activities generate a minimal amount of traffic and maintain the general character of a residential neighborhood.

#### Low Density Residential:

The low density residential zones are intended to create, maintain, and promote neighborhoods with larger lot sizes where the land use is primarily single-family dwellings. They allow for some non-household living uses but maintain the overall character of a single-family neighborhood.

## VII. PROPERTY ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION

The Plan authorizes the acquisition and disposition of property as described in this section. Property includes any and all interests in property, including fee simple ownership, lease, easements, licenses, or other rights to use.

## A. Property acquisition for public improvements

The Redevelopment Commission may acquire any property within the Area for the public improvement projects undertaken pursuant to the Plan by all legal means, including use of eminent domain. Good faith negotiations for such acquisitions must occur prior to institution of eminent domain procedures.

## B. Property acquisition – from willing sellers

The Plan authorizes Redevelopment Commission acquisition of any interest in property within the Area that the Redevelopment Commission finds is necessary to support private redevelopment, but only in those cases where the property owner wishes to convey such interest to the Redevelopment Commission. The Plan does not authorize the Redevelopment Commission to use the power of eminent domain to acquire property from a private party to transfer property to another private party for private redevelopment. Property acquisition from willing sellers may be required to support development of projects within the Area.

## C. Land disposition

The Redevelopment Commission will dispose of property acquired for a public improvement project by conveyance to the appropriate public agency responsible for the construction and/or maintenance of the public improvement. The Redevelopment Commission may retain such property during the construction of the public improvement.

The Redevelopment Commission may dispose of property acquired under Subsection B of this Section VI by conveying any interest in property acquired. Property shall be conveyed at its fair reuse value. Fair reuse value is the value, whether expressed in terms of rental or capital price, at which the Redevelopment Commission, in its discretion, determines such land should be made available in order that it may be developed, redeveloped, cleared, conserved, or rehabilitated for the purposes specified in such plan. Because fair reuse value reflects limitations on the use of the property to those purposes specified in the Plan, the value may be lower than the property's fair market value.

Where land is sold or leased, the purchaser or lessee must agree to use the land for the purposes designated in the Plan and to begin and complete the building of its improvements within a period of time that the Redevelopment Commission determines is reasonable.

## VIII. RELOCATION METHODS

When the Redevelopment Commission acquires occupied property under the Plan, residential or commercial occupants of such property shall be offered relocation assistance, as required under applicable state law. Prior to such acquisition, the Redevelopment Commission shall adopt rules and regulations, as necessary, for the administration of relocation assistance.

## IX. TAX INCREMENT FINANCING OF THE PLAN

Tax increment financing consists of using annual tax increment revenues to make payments on loans, usually in the form of tax increment bonds. The proceeds of the bonds are used to finance the urban renewal projects authorized in the Plan. Bonds may be either long-term or short-term.

Tax increment revenues equal most of the annual property taxes imposed on the cumulative *increase* in assessed value within an urban renewal area over the total assessed value at the time an urban renewal plan is adopted. (Under current law, the property taxes for general obligation (GO) bonds and local option levies approved after October 6, 2001 are not part of the tax increment revenues.)

## A. General description of the proposed financing methods

The Plan will be financed using a combination of revenue sources. These include:

- Tax increment revenues;
- Advances, loans, grants, and any other form of financial assistance from the federal, state, or local governments, or other public bodies;
- Loans, grants, dedications, or other contributions from private developers and property owners, including, but not limited to, assessment districts; and
- Any other public or private source.

Revenues obtained by the Redevelopment Commission will be used to pay or repay the costs, expenses, advancements, and indebtedness incurred in (1) planning or undertaking project activities, or (2) otherwise exercising any of the powers granted by ORS Chapter 457 in connection with the implementation of this Plan.

## B. Tax increment financing and maximum indebtedness

The Plan may be financed, in whole or in part, by tax increment revenues allocated to the Redevelopment Commission, as provided in ORS Chapter 457. The ad valorem taxes, if any, levied by a taxing district in which all or a portion of the Area is located, shall be divided as provided in Section 1c, Article IX of the Oregon Constitution, and ORS 457.440. Amounts collected pursuant to ORS 457.440 shall be deposited into the unsegregated tax collections account and distributed to the Agency based upon the distribution schedule established under ORS 311.390.

The maximum amount of indebtedness that may be issued or incurred under the Plan, based upon good faith estimates of the scope and costs of projects in the Plan and the schedule for their completion is \$92,500,000 (ninety-two million five hundred thousand dollars). This amount is the principal of such indebtedness and does not include interest or indebtedness incurred to refund or refinance existing indebtedness or interest earned on bond proceeds. It does include initial bond financing fees and interest earned on tax increment proceeds, separate from interest on bond proceeds.

## X. FUTURE AMENDMENTS TO PLAN

The Plan may be amended as described in this section.

## A. Substantial Amendments

Substantial Amendments, in accordance with ORS 457.085(2)(i), shall require the same notice, hearing, and approval procedure required of the original Plan, under ORS 457.095, including public involvement, consultation with taxing districts, presentation to the Redevelopment Commission, the Planning Commission, and adoption by the City Council by non-emergency ordinance after a hearing. Notice of such hearing shall be provided to individuals or households within the City of Milwaukie, as required by ORS 457.120. Notice of adoption of a Substantial Amendment shall be provided in accordance with ORS 457.095 and 457.115.

Substantial Amendments are amendments that:

- 1. Add land to the urban renewal area, except for an addition of land that totals not more than 1% of the existing area of the urban renewal area; or
- 2. Increase the maximum amount of indebtedness that can be issued or incurred under the Plan.
- 3. Increase the duration of the Plan beyond 31 years from first year of receipt of tax increment revenue.

## B. Minor Amendments

Minor Amendments are amendments that are not Substantial Amendments as defined in this Plan and in ORS 457. Minor Amendments require approval by the Redevelopment Commission by resolution.

Increasing the duration of the Plan beyond 29 years to a limit of 31 years from first year of receipt of tax increment revenue is a minor amendment.

## C. Amendments to the Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan and/or Milwaukie Zoning Ordinance

Amendments to the Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan and/or Milwaukie Zoning Ordinance that affect the Urban Renewal Plan and/or the Urban Renewal Area shall be incorporated automatically within the Urban Renewal Plan without any separate action required by the Redevelopment Commission or the City Council.

## XI. DURATION OF THE PLAN

The Agency intends that it not collect tax increment revenues for the Area after FYE 2046. The Agency shall not initiate any urban renewal projects in the Area unless the Agency reasonably projects it will be able to pay for those projects from the proceeds of indebtedness issued on or before FYE 2046, and from other funds available to the Agency. Except as provided in the next sentence, all indebtedness that is secured by the tax increment revenues of the Area shall mature no later than FYE 2046, and the Agency shall structure all its indebtedness so that it can be paid in full from the tax increment revenues of the Area that the Agency reasonably projects it will receive on or before FYE 2046. The Agency may issue refunding indebtedness that matures after FYE 2046, only if issuing that refunding indebtedness is necessary to avoid a default on previously-issued indebtedness.

During the fifteenth (15th) year of the Plan, the Agency shall undertake a financial analysis of the Plan, including updated projections for tax increment finance revenues and evaluating the ability of the revenues to achieve or exceed the Plan's maximum indebtedness by the anticipated expiration date in FYE 2046. The Agency shall consult and confer with affected taxing districts regarding the results of this financial update and will consider revenue sharing or shortening the time frame of the plan if revenues are exceeding projections.

## XII. RELATIONSHIP TO LOCAL OBJECTIVES

The Plan relates to local planning and development objectives contained within the Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan and Municipal Code (Title 19: Zoning Ordinance), and the Transportation System Plan. The following section describes the purpose and intent of these plans, the particular goals and policies within each planning document to which the proposed Plan relates, and an explanation of how the Plan relates to these goals and policies. The numbering of the goals, policies, and implementation strategies will reflect the numbering that occurs in the original document. Italicized text is text that *has* been taken directly from an original planning document. The Comprehensive Plan designations are shown in Figure 2. The maximum densities and building requirements are contained in the Milwaukie Zoning Ordinance. The proposed land uses conform to Figure 2.

This is not a comprehensive list of all parts of the Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan that are supported by this Plan. This list includes the major Goals and Policies from the Comprehensive Plan that are supported; however, there may be other Goals and Policies that are not listed, but are still supported by this Plan.



Figure 2 – Comprehensive Plan Designations

## A. Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan

The Plan conforms to the Citizen Involvement, Land Use: Residential Land Use and Housing Element, Economic Base and Industrial/Commercial Land Use Element, Recreational Needs Element, Willamette Greenway Element, Neighborhood Element, Transportation, Public Facilities and Energy Conservation: Transportation Element, Public Facilities and Services Element, Energy Conservation Element sections of the Comprehensive Plan as it contains projects to upgrade the transportation infrastructure, to support existing business and allow for development of new businesses to create jobs, utilizing underutilized and/or blighted sites and improve public amenities throughout the Area.

## Chapter 1 - Citizen Involvement

Policy: Citizen Involvement To encourage and provide opportunities for citizens to participate in all phases of the planning process, to keep citizens informed and to open lines of communication for the sharing of questions, problems and suggestions regarding the Comprehensive Plan and land use regulations.

The Plan conforms with the Citizen Involvement Section of the Comprehensive Plan as members of the neighborhood associations were on the Advisory Group and the process included many opportunities for public input including the Advisory Group meetings, Planning Commission meeting, City Council hearing, and six community events at which there was information about the urban renewal plan. Information was also posted to the City of Milwaukie website and articles published in the March, May, June, July and August editions of the Milwaukie Pilot.

## Chapter 4 - Land Use - Residential Land Use and Housing Element

GOAL STATEMENT: To provide for the maintenance of existing housing, the rehabilitation of older housing and the development of sound, adequate new housing to meet the housing needs of local residents and the larger metropolitan housing market, while preserving and enhancing local neighborhood quality and identity.

## OBJECTIVE #1 — BUILDABLE LANDS

To utilize lands in the City according to their relative measure of buildability, based on land type classifications.

The Plan conforms to the buildable lands objective as one of the goals in the Plan is to develop vacant and underutilized properties within the Area that may have residential uses as a component of the redevelopment. There are specific programs authorized in the Plan that would provide developer assistance.

## OBJECTIVE #2 --- RESIDENTIAL LAND USE: DENSITY AND LOCATION

To locate higher density residential uses so that the concentration of people will help to support public transportation services and major commercial centers and foster implementation of the Town Center Master Plan.

The Plan conforms to the residential land use: density and location objective as one of the goals in the Plan is to develop vacant and underutilized properties within the Area, , that is also part of the Town Center Master Plan, that may have residential uses as a component of the redevelopment. There are specific programs authorized in the Plan that would provide developer assistance.

## **OBJECTIVE #4 — NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION**

To maximize the opportunities to preserve, enhance and reinforce the identity and pride of existing welldefined neighborhoods in order to encourage the long-term maintenance of the City's housing stock.

The Plan conforms to the neighborhood conservation objective as a goal of the Plan is to preserve the downtown core and enhance opportunities in central Milwaukie, both of which will help support the existing residential neighborhoods.

## OBJECTIVE #5 — HOUSING CHOICE

To continue to encourage an adequate and diverse range of housing types and the optimum utilization of housing resources to meet the housing needs of all segments of the population.

The Plan conforms to the housing choice objective as one of the goals in the Plan is to develop vacant and underutilized properties within the Area that may have residential as a component of the redevelopment. There are specific programs authorized in the Plan that would provide developer assistance, including affordable housing assistance.

## OBJECTIVE #6 - HOUSING ASSISTANCE

To assist low and moderate income households in obtaining housing which is consistent with other housing objectives and policies.

The Plan conforms to the housing assistance objective as one of the goals in the Plan is to develop vacant and underutilized properties within the Area that may have residential as a component of the redevelopment. There are specific programs authorized in the Plan that would provide developer assistance, including affordable housing assistance.

## Economic Base and Industrial/ Commercial Land Use Element

GOAL STATEMENT: To continue to support and encourage the development of a broad industrial base in the City, and to encourage the expansion of service facilities in the community.

## OBJECTIVE #1 — ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The City will encourage an increase in the overall economic development activity within the City, will strive to retain existing businesses as well as actively attract new businesses, particularly those identified as having growth potential.

The Plan conforms to the economic development objective as there are programs within the Plan designed to increase overall economic development activity for both existing businesses and attracting new businesses.

## OBJECTIVE #2 — EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

To continue to support a wide range of employment opportunities for Milwaukie citizens.

The Plan conforms to the economic opportunity objective as there are programs within the Plan designed to increase overall economic development activity for both existing businesses and attracting new businesses, providing a range of employment opportunities for Milwaukie citizens.

## OBJECTIVE #3 - COORDINATION

To continue to participate in economic development and employment programs and develop a working partnership with the private sector and various agencies to meet the economic development needs of *Milwaukie*.

The Plan conforms to the coordination objective as there are programs within the Plan designed to increase overall economic development activity for both existing businesses and attracting new businesses, coordinating with private sector and other agencies as opportunities occur.

## OBJECTIVE #6 - COMMERCIAL LAND USE

To encourage new commercial uses to locate within designated commercial areas of the City, in order to take maximum advantage of existing access and public facilities serving these areas.

The Plan conforms to the commercial land use objective as there are underutilized and vacant commercial parcels included within the area where in the city intends to encourage economic development.

## OBJECTIVE #8 --- COMMERCIAL LAND USE: COMMUNITY CENTER

To provide for the weekly and comparison goods shopping needs of the City's and surrounding areas' residents.

The Plan conforms to the commercial land use: community center objective as there are underutilized and vacant commercial parcels included within the area where in the city intends to encourage economic development that could provide for the weekly and comparison goods shopping needs for the community.

## OBJECTIVE #12 - TOWN CENTER

To emphasize downtown Milwaukie and the expanded city center as a Town Center with the major concentration of mixed use and high density housing, office, and service uses in the City

The Plan conforms to the Town Center objective as the downtown and the expanded city center, including central Milwaukie, are included in the urban renewal area with goals to increase mixed-use and high density housing, office and services in the Area.

## OBJECTIVE #13 - MCLOUGHLIN BOULEVARD

To provide for limited highway service uses along McLoughlin Boulevard while improving the visual and pedestrian-oriented linkages between downtown and the Willamette River, and making McLoughlin Boulevard more attractive.

The Plan conforms to the McLoughlin Boulevard objective as projects are included within the plan to improve links between downtown and the Willamette River, making McLoughlin Boulevard more attractive.

## **OBJECTIVE #16 – CENTRAL MILWAUKIE**

To adopt and implement the Central Milwaukie Land Use and Transportation Plan as an ancillary document to the Comprehensive Plan and acknowledge the Central Milwaukie boundary as shown on Map 7.

The Plan conforms to the Central Milwaukie objective as central Milwaukie is included in the urban renewal area and projects are included within the plan to enhance economic opportunities and improve access to the area for pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicles with the intent to improve central Milwaukie as a commercial center.

## **Recreational Needs Element**

GOAL STATEMENT: To provide for the recreational needs of present and future City residents by maximizing the use of existing public facilities, encouraging the development of private recreational facilities, and preserving the opportunity for future public recreational use of vacant private lands.

## OBJECTIVE #6 --- MAXIMIZATION OF EXISTING PARKS

To maximize the use of existing City parks consistent with their natural features and carrying capacity.

The Plan conforms to the Maximization of Existing Parks objective as there are projects within the Plan to upgrade parks within the Area.

## OBJECTIVE #7 --- RIVERFRONT RECREATION

To maximize the recreational use of the Willamette River shoreland and waterways.

The Plan conforms to the Riverfront Recreation objective as one of the projects within the Plan is to assist in the completion of the Willamette Riverfront Park.

#### Willamette Greenway Element

GOAL STATEMENT: To protect, conserve, enhance, and maintain the natural, scenic, Downtown, agricultural, economic, and recreational qualities of lands along the Willamette River as the Willamette River Greenway.

#### OBJECTIVE #5 - PUBLIC ACCESS AND VIEW PROTECTION

To provide, improve, and maintain public access and visual access within the Greenway and to the Willamette River and Kellogg Lake.

The Plan conforms to the Riverfront Recreation objective as one of the projects within the Plan is to assist in the completion of the Willamette Riverfront Park and assist with improvements to Kellogg Lake.

#### Neighborhood Element

GOAL STATEMENT: To preserve and reinforce the stability and diversity of the City's neighborhoods in order to attract and retain long-term residents and ensure the City's residential quality and livability.

#### OBJECTIVE #1 — NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTER

To maintain the residential character of designated neighborhood areas.

The Plan conforms to the neighborhood character objective as improvement to the downtown commercial core in Central Milwaukie will help support the neighborhood residential areas.

## OBJECTIVE #2 --- NEIGHBORHOOD NEEDS

## To meet the needs of neighborhood areas for public facilities and services.

The Plan conforms to the neighborhood needs objective as improvement to the downtown commercial core and Central Milwaukie will help support the neighborhood residential areas.

## Chapter 5 - Transportation, Public Facilities and Energy Conservation

Policy: The City of Milwaukie has a responsibility to its present and future residents to provide a full range of urban services including streets, sewers and water, as well as police and fire protection. In order to create a healthy living environment and efficiently allocate public expenditures, the City believes that these public facilities must be planned prior to future growth, and continually upgraded and maintained once constructed. The Plan elements which address these concerns are:

## Transportation Element

The Transportation System Plan (TSP) is an ancillary Comprehensive Plan document that contains the City's long-term transportation goals and policies for pedestrians, cyclists, drivers, transit users, and freight carriers. It provides for the coordination of transportation improvements at the local level and the integration of the local transportation system with the regional transportation system. It also identifies the transportation issues, policies, and projects that are important to the community.

Transportation goals form the basis for how the local transportation system will be developed and maintained over the long term. Given their importance, the City involved agency, business, and citizen stakeholders in developing goals that support a multimodal approach to transportation planning that reflects how citizens think about and experience the transportation system. Since they are equally important in different ways, they are not listed in order of importance or priority.

## GOAL 1: Livability. Design and construct transportation facilities in a manner that enhances the livability of Milwaukie's community.

The Plan conforms to the livability goal as there are transportation projects, specifically projects to allow the development of underutilized parcels in the Area, within the Plan that will enhance the livability of Milwaukie's community.

#### GOAL 2: Safety. Develop and maintain a safe and secure transportation system.

The Plan conforms to the safety goal as there are transportation projects, specifically projects to allow the development of underutilized parcels in the Area and to improve intersections and other connections and corridors, within the Plan that will enhance the safety of Milwaukie's transportation system.

## GOAL 3 Travel Choices. Plan, develop, and maintain a transportation system that provides travel choices and allows people to reduce the number of trips made by single-occupant vehicles.

The Plan conforms to the travel choices goal as there are transportation projects, specifically projects to allow the development of underutilized parcels in the Area, and to improve intersections and other connections and corridors, within the Plan that will enhance the livability of Milwaukie's community. These projects include enhanced transportation options for pedestrians and bicyclists.

## GOAL 4: Quality Design. Establish and maintain a set of transportation design and development regulations that are sensitive to local conditions.

The Plan conforms to the quality design goal as there are transportation projects, specifically projects to allow the development of underutilized parcels in the Area, within the Plan that will enhance the livability of Milwaukie's community. These projects will be constructed in conformance with Milwaukie's transportation design and development regulations.

GOAL 5: Reliability and Mobility. Develop and maintain a well-connected transportation system that reduces travel distance, improves reliability, and manages congestion.

The Plan conforms to the reliability and mobility goal as there are transportation projects, specifically projects to allow the development of underutilized parcels in the Area, within the Plan that will reduce travel distance, improve reliability and manage congestion.

GOAL 6: Sustainability. Provide a sustainable transportation system that meets the needs of present and future generations.

The Plan conforms to the sustainability goal as there are transportation projects, specifically projects to allow the development of underutilized parcels in the Area, within the Plan that will reduce travel distance, improve reliability and manage congestion. These projects include enhanced transportation options for pedestrians and bicyclists.

GOAL 7: Efficient and Innovative Funding. Efficiently allocate available funding for recommended transportation improvements, and pursue additional transportation funding that includes innovative funding methods and sources.

The Plan conforms to the efficient and innovative funding goal as there are transportation projects, specifically projects to allow the development of underutilized parcels in the Area, within the Plan that will allow the city to use funds other than the city's general fund to provide for recommended transportation improvements.

GOAL 8: Compatibility. Develop a transportation system that is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan and coordinates with County, State, and regional plans.

The Plan conforms to the compatibility goal as there are transportation projects, specifically projects to allow the development of underutilized parcels in the Area, within the Plan that will be coordinated by the city to ensure compliance with the comprehensive plan and coordination with the county, state and regional plans.

GOAL 9: Economic Vitality. Promote the development of Milwaukie's, the region's and the state's economies through the efficient movement of people, goods and services, and the distribution of information.

The Plan conforms to the economic vitality goal as there are transportation projects in the area that will promote the development of Milwaukie, the region, and the state economies through the efficient movement of people, goods and services, and the distribution of information.

## **Public Facilities and Services Element**

To plan, develop and maintain a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and services to serve urban development.

OBJECTIVE #1 — PRIORITY

To ensure that adequate levels of public facilities and services are provided to existing City residents and businesses as a first priority as urban development or growth occurs.

The Plan conforms to the Priority objective as public facilities including streets bike paths, and pedestrian facilities, will be upgraded within the Area.

## OBJECTIVE #2 - COORDINATION

To encourage cooperation and coordination between all public service agencies to maximize the efficient provision of all services.

The Plan conforms to the Coordination objective as the city will coordinate with other public service agencies to maximize the efficient provision of both services. The urban renewal advisory group that helped with the development of the Plan had representatives of the Clackamas Fire District No. 1, Milwaukie School District, Clackamas Community College and Clackamas County.

## **Energy Conservation Element**

GOAL STATEMENT: To conserve energy by encouraging energy efficient land use patterns and transportation systems, and by encouraging the construction industry and private homeowners to participate in energy conservation programs.

## OBJECTIVE #1 --- LAND USE

## To encourage an energy efficient land use pattern.

The Plan conforms to the commercial land use objective as there are underutilized and vacant commercial parcels included within the Area where in the city intends to encourage economic development that would encourage an energy efficient land use pattern.

#### **OBJECTIVE #2 — TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM**

#### To encourage an energy efficient transportation system.

The Plan conforms to the Transportation System objective as there are transportation projects, specifically projects to allow the development of underutilized parcels in the Area, within the Plan that will encourage an energy efficient transportation system.

## B. Central Milwaukie Land Use and Transportation Plan – Ancillary document to the Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan

The Central Milwaukie Land Use and Transportation Plan was adopted by Ordinance #2110 on December 15, 2015. The document presents a land use and transportation framework for development and circulation in Central Milwaukie. Its purpose is to provide a cohesive vision for the area and facilitate future private and public investment that will meet community needs and desires while also achieving economic success.

The Guiding Principles are:

- Maintain and improve Central Milwaukie as the city's primary commercial center
- Foster a sense of place in Central Milwaukie by promoting an identity and
- a vision
- Enhance economic opportunities in the area
- Add a mix of uses to support a district

- that is lively and active
- Maintain an overall character complementary to and protective of surrounding neighborhoods
- Improve access to and within the area for pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicles

The Fundamental Concepts are:

- Facilitate development of the Murphy and McFarland opportunity sites
- Promote high-quality, urban design that is complementary to the
- surrounding area
- Encourage a range of housing types as a part of new mixed-use development
- Improve connectivity within the district with easily accessible multimodal
- pathways that are safe and attractive
- Improve external connections to the district

The Plan conforms to the Central Milwaukie Land Use and Transportation Plan as there are specific projects including transportation upgrades and connectivity projects and programs that provide developer assistance identified within the Plan that will provide implementation tools for the Central Milwaukie Land Use and Transportation Plan.

## C. Milwaukie Downtown and Riverfront Land Use Framework Plan -Ancillary document to the Milwaukie Comprehensive Plan

The Milwaukie Downtown and Riverfront Land Use Framework Plan was adopted by Ordinance #1880 on September 19, 2000, revised by Ordinance #2106, adopted September 1, 2015. The Milwaukie Downtown and Riverfront Land Use Framework Plan (Framework Plan) represents a major opportunity to reinvigorate downtown Milwaukie. With aggressive and focused efforts from both the public and private sectors over the coming years, downtown Milwaukie will be revitalized. This Framework Plan outlines the components necessary to make such a vision of Milwaukie a reality. It foremost builds upon existing assets, capitalizes upon significant existing uses, and features the natural environment. It also sets out a realistic agenda and implementation program that the City and private development can follow.

The Guiding Principles are:

Creating a Livable Community Ensuring Economic Success

The Fundamental Concepts are:

Anchors and Attractors The Main Street Retail Spine McLoughlin Boulevard Commercial Corridor 21<sup>st</sup> Avenue Mixed-Use Corridor Connecting to the River South Downtown Planning Area

The Plan conforms to the Milwaukie Downtown and Riverfront Land Use Framework Plan as there are specific projects including parks projects, transportation upgrades and connectivity projects and programs that provide developer assistance identified within the Plan that will provide implementation tools for the Milwaukie Downtown and Riverfront Land Use Framework Plan.

## D. Regional Center Master Plan

Adopted December 2, 1997 Ordinance #1826

The Milwaukie Regional Center Master Plan established the framework for the city center referenced in the Milwaukie Vision Statement. The Master Plan complies the objectives for housing, transportation, commercial, urban design and general land use changes in the Regional Center.

The Plan conforms to the Regional Center Master Plan, as updated by the Milwaukie Downtown and Riverfront Land Use Framework Plan and the Central Milwaukie Land Use and Transportation Plan, as there are specific projects including transportation upgrades and connectivity projects and programs that provide developer assistance identified within the Plan.

## E. Transportation Systems Plan

The Milwaukie Transportation System Plan (TSP) is the City's long-term plan for transportation improvements and includes policies and projects that could be implemented through the City Capital Improvement Plan, development review, or grant funding. The 2007 TSP planning process was a great opportunity for the community to fully define its transportation goals and discuss how the whole transportation system could be improved to support livability in Milwaukie. The 2013 TSP update process provided an opportunity to ensure that the plan reflected current conditions and took into account the latest forecasts and projections.

#### Goals

Transportation goals and policies form the basis for how the local transportation system will be developed and maintained over the next 22 years. The City's transportation goals support a multimodal approach to transportation planning and reflect how citizens think about and experience Milwaukie's transportation system. The City's nine transportation goals are:

GOAL 1 Livability: Design and construct transportation facilities in a manner that enhances the livability of Milwaukie's community.

GOAL 2 Safety: Develop and maintain a safe and secure transportation system.

GOAL 3 TRAVEL CHOICES: Plan, develop, and maintain a transportation system that provides travel choices and allows people to reduce the number of trips made by single-occupant vehicles.

GOAL 4 QUALITY DESIGN: Establish and maintain a set of transportation design and development regulations that are sensitive to local conditions.

GOAL 5 RELIABILITY AND MOBILITY: Develop and maintain a well-connected transportation system that reduces travel distance, improves reliability, and manages congestion.

GOAL 6 SUSTAINABILITY: Provide a sustainable transportation system that meets the needs of present and future generations.

GOAL 7 EFFICIENT AND INNOVATIVE FUNDING: Efficiently allocate available funding for recommended transportation improvements, and pursue additional transportation funding that includes innovative funding methods and sources.

GOAL 8 COMPATIBILITY: Develop a transportation system that is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan and coordinates with County, State, and regional plans.

GOAL 9 ECONOMIC VITALITY: Promote the development of Milwaukie's, the region's, and the state's economies through the efficient movement of people, goods, and services, and the distribution of information.

The Plan conforms to the Transportation Systems Plan as there are specific projects including transportation upgrades and connectivity projects identified within the Plan.

## Parks Master Plans

There are master plans for Kronberg and Scott parks.

The Plan conforms to these master plans as there are specific projects identified within the Plan for the upgrading of these parks.

## XIII. APPENDIX A: LEGAL DESCRIPTION



AKS ENGINEERING & FORESTRY, LLC 12965 SW Herman Road, Suite 100, Tualatin, OR 97062 P: (503) 563-6151 F: (503) 563-6152

AKS Job #5392

OFFICES IN: TUALATIN, OR - VANCOUVER, WA - SALEM-KEIZER, OR

## EXHIBIT A

Urban Renewal Area Milwaukie, Oregon

A tract of land located in the Southeast One-Quarter and the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 25, the Southeast One-Quarter of Section 26, the Northeast One-Quarter and the Southeast One-Quarter of Section 35, the Northeast One-Quarter and the Southeast One-Quarter and the Southwest One-Quarter and the Northwest One-Quarter of Section 36, Township 1 South, Range 1 East, Willamette Meridian, City of Milwaukie, Clackamas County, Oregon, and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the northwest corner of the Daniel Hathaway Donation Land Claim No. 60 located in the Southeast One-Quarter of Section 25, Township 1 South, Range 1 East, Willamette Meridian, City of Milwaukie, Clackamas County, Oregon (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DC):

- 1. Thence along the west line of said Donation Land Claim, Southerly 30 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of King Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DC);
- 2. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Westerly 226 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way of 35th Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DC);
- 3. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 158 feet, more or less, to the easterly extension of the southerly right-of-way line of Llewellyn Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DC);
- 4. Thence along said easterly extension and the southerly right-of-way line of Llewellyn Street, Westerly 429 feet, more or less, to the westerly line of Lot 8, Block 1 of the plat "Leo First Addition" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 5. Thence along said westerly line, Southerly 100 feet, more or less, to the southerly line of said Lot 8 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 6. Thence along said southerly line, Easterly 6 feet, more or less, to the northwest corner of Document Number 2005-040292 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 7. Thence along the west line of said deed, Southerly 200 feet, more or less, to the northerly right-of-way line of Harrison Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 8. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line, Easterly 295 feet, more or less, to the northerly extension of the west line of Document Number 2014-043914 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 9. Thence along said northerly extension and the westerly line of said deed, also along the west lines of Document Number 98-036167, Document Number 1985-040139, and Document Number 2014-001431, Southerly 358 feet, more or less, to the northerly line of Parcel 1 of Document Number 1972-022047 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 10. Thence along the northerly line of said Parcel 1, Easterly 126 feet, more or less, to the northeast corner of said Parcel 1 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 11. Thence along the easterly line of said Parcel 1, Southerly 156 feet, more or less, to the northerly right-of-way line of Monroe Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);

- 12. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line, Easterly 756 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of 37th Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AA);
- 13. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 579 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of Washington Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AD);
- 14. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Easterly 98 feet, more or less, to the northeast corner of Lot 18, Block 74 of the plat "Minthorn-Detail Sheet No. 2" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AD);
- 15. Thence along the easterly line of said Lot 18, Southerly 50 feet, more or less, to the southwest corner of Document Number 1997-071749 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AD);
- 16. Thence along the southerly line of said deed, Easterly 75 feet, more or less, to the easterly line of Lot 15, Block 74 of the plat "Minthorn-Detail Sheet No. 2" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AD);
- 17. Thence along said easterly line and the easterly line of Lot 26, Block 74 of the plat "Minthorn-Detail Sheet No. 2", Southerly 140 feet, more or less, to the northerly right-of-way line of Adams Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AD);
- 18. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line, Westerly 80 feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way line of Railroad Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AD);
- 19. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 102 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of 37th Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AD);
- 20. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 1,434 feet, more or less, to the intersection of the southerly right-of-way line of International Way and the easterly right-of-way line of Pacific Highway East Cascade Section 224 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36DA);
- 21. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 500 feet, more or less, to the easterly extension of the northerly right-of-way line of Grogan Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36DA);
- 22. Thence along said easterly extension, Westerly 358 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly right-of-way line of 37th Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36DA);
- 23. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line and the southwesterly right-of-way line of Edison Street, Northwesterly 556 feet, more or less, to the easterly line of Lot 17, Block 93 of the plat "Minthorn-Detail Sheet No. 1" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36DA);
- 24. Thence along said easterly line and the northerly extension thereof, Northerly 79 feet, more or less, to the northerly right-of-way line of Edison Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AD);
- 25. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line, Easterly 194 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of Pacific Highway East Cascade Section 224 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AD);
- 26. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 1,796 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly extension of the southeasterly right-of-way line of Oak Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AC S1);
- 27. Thence along said southwesterly extension, Southwesterly 60 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly right-of-way line of Washington Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36 AC);
- 28. Thence along said southwesterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 451 feet, more or less, to the easterly line of Lot 7, Block 1 of the plat "Quincy Addition to

Milwaukie", being on the southerly right-of-way line of Washington Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BD);

- 29. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 1,695 feet, more or less, to the easterly line of Document Number 2005-002827, being a line parallel to and 84 feet, more or less, easterly of the easterly right-of-way line of 23rd Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 30. Thence along said easterly line and the easterly line of Document Number 2004-064898, Southerly 158 feet, more or less, to the southerly line of said deed (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 31. Thence along said southerly line, Westerly 84 feet, more or less, to the easterly rightof-way line of 23rd Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 32. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 240 feet, more or less, to the northerly line of the plat "Young's Addition" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 33. Thence along said northerly line, Westerly 42 feet, more or less, to the westerly rightof-way line of 23rd Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 34. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Northerly 175 feet, more or less, to the southerly line of Parcel 2 of Document Number 2003-167202 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 35. Thence along said southerly line of said Parcel 2, Westerly 86 feet, more or less, to the easterly line of the plat "Duersts Addition to Milwaukie" (Assessor's Map 1 1 E 36 BC);
- 36. Thence along said easterly line, Southerly 174 feet, more or less, to the easterly extension of the south line of Lot 3, Block 2 of said plat (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 37. Thence along said easterly extension and the southerly line thereof and along the southerly line of Lot 8, Block 2 of said plat, Westerly 228 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of 21st Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 38. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 240 feet, more or less, to the northerly line of Lot 7, Block 1 of the plat "Duersts Addition To Milwaukie" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 39. Thence along said northerly line, Easterly 100 feet, more or less, to the easterly line of said Lot 7 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 40. Thence along said easterly line and the easterly line of Lot 8, Block 1 of said plat and the southerly extension thereof, Southerly 162 feet, more or less, to the vacated centerline of Willard Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 41. Thence along said vacated centerline line, Westerly 9 feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way line of Lake Road (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 42. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 146 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of 22nd Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 43. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Northerly 111 feet, more or less, to the northerly right-of-way line of Willard Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 44. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line and the easterly extension thereof, Easterly 953 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of 27th Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BD);

- 45. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 48 feet, more or less, to the easterly extension of the southerly right-of-way line of Willard Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BD);
- 46. Thence along said easterly extension and the southerly right-of-way line thereof, Northwesterly 411 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of 25th Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 47. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 218 feet, more or less, to the southerly line of the plat "Young's Addition" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 48. Thence along said southerly line, Westerly 50 feet, more or less, to the westerly rightof-way line of 25th Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 49. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Northerly 208 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of Willard Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36 BC);
- 50. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Westerly 470 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of 22nd Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 51. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 75 feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way line of Lake Road (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 52. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 135 feet, more or less, to a point which bears southeasterly 31 feet, more or less, from the southerly line of the plat "Young's Addition" and also being a point northeasterly 65 feet, more or less, when measured at right angles from the most northerly corner of Document Number 1992-014322 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BC);
- 53. Thence Southwesterly 65 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly right-of-way line of Lake Road, also being the most northerly corner of Document Number 1992-014322 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 54. Thence along the northwesterly line of said deed, Southwesterly 365 feet, more or less, to an angle point (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 55. Thence continuing along said northwesterly line, Southerly 57 feet, more or less, to an angle point (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 56. Thence continuing along said northwesterly line and the northerly line of Document Number 2007-045540, Southwesterly 194 feet, more or less, to the northwesterly corner of said Document Number 2007-045540 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 57. Thence along the westerly line of said deed, Southerly 744 feet, more or less, to the southerly line of Lot 2, Block 32 of the plat "Milwaukie Heights" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 58. Thence along said southerly line, Westerly 175 feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way line of US 99E (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 59. Thence Southwesterly 168 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of River Road, also being the northeasterly corner of Oregon Department of Transportation Right-of-Way File 17793 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 60. Thence along the northeasterly line of said Right-of-Way file and the northeasterly line of Document Number 1991-022253, Northwesterly 130 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of Bluebird Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 61. Thence Northerly 60 feet, more or less, to the northerly right-of-way line of Bluebird Street, also being the southwesterly corner of Document Number 2014-038909 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 62. Thence along the southwesterly line of said deed, Northwesterly 205 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of 22nd Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36CB);
- 63. Thence Northwesterly 70 feet, more or less, to a point which bears northerly 13 feet, more or less, from the southeasterly corner of Lot 3, Block 10 of the plat "Robertson", also being on the westerly right-of-way line of 22nd Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 35DA);
- 64. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Northerly 87 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of Eagle Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 35DA);
- 65. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Westerly 1,000 feet, more or less, to the westerly line of the Open Space Zone (Assessor's Map 1 1E 35DA);
- 66. Thence along said westerly line, Northerly 2,387 feet, more or less, to the westerly extension of the southerly line of Document Number 2003-162584 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 35AA);
- 67. Thence along said westerly extension, Easterly 77 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly corner of said deed (Assessor's Map 1 1E 35AA);
- 68. Thence along the westerly line of said deed, Northeasterly 173 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of the abandoned Portland Traction Company Rail Road (Assessor's Map 1 1E 35AA);
- 69. Thence along said abandoned southerly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 643 feet, more or less, to southwesterly corner of Document Number 98-011667 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 35AA);
- 70. Thence along the westerly line of said deed, Northeasterly 45 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of SE River Lane (Assessor's Map 1 1E 35AB);
- 71. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line and the northerly extension thereof, Northwesterly 477 feet, more or less, to the westerly extension of the northerly rightof-way line of SE Lava Drive (Assessor's Map 1 1E 26DC);
- 72. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 732 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of 17th Avenue (Assessor's Map 1 1E 26DD);
- 73. Thence leaving said westerly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 206 feet, more or less, to the intersection of the westerly right-of-way line of US 99E and the easterly line of Johnson Creek (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 74. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Northerly 449 feet, more or less, to the westerly extension of the northerly line of Parcel 1 of Partition Plat 1990-015 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 75. Thence along said westerly extension and the northerly line of said Parcel 1 and the easterly extension thereof, Easterly 202 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of Main Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 76. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Northerly 164 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of Pacific Highway East Cascade Section 224 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 77. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Easterly 422 feet, more or less, to the easterly line of Document Number 1990-039292 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 78. Thence along said easterly line and the westerly right-of-way line of 23rd Street, Southerly 101 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of 23rd Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);

- 79. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Easterly 110 feet, more or less, to the westerly line of Document Number 2012-035206 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 80. Thence along said westerly line, Southerly 80 feet, more or less, to the northerly line of Document Number 99-012354 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 81. Thence along said northerly line, Westerly 110 feet, more or less, to westerly line of the plat "Streib's First Addition" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 82. Thence along said westerly line, Southerly 175 feet, more or less, to the westerly extension of the northerly line of Lot 2, Block 6 of said plat (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 83. Thence along said westerly extension and the northerly line of said Lot 2, and also the northerly line of Lot 13, Block 6 of said plat and the easterly extension thereof, Easterly 277 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of 23rd Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 84. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 100 feet, more or less, to the northerly right-of-way line of Llewellyn Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 85. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line, Easterly 260 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of 24th Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 86. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Southerly 260 feet, more or less, to the northerly right-of-way line of Harrison Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CC);
- 87. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line, Easterly 1,367 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of Pacific Highway East Cascade Section 224 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CD);
- 88. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Northerly 186 feet, more or less, to a point which bears northwesterly 31 feet, more or less, from the northerly line of Lot 14, Block 2 of the plat "Brownell Acres" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CD);
- 89. Thence Easterly 158 feet, more or less, to the northerly corner of Document Number 1983-038560, also being on the easterly right-of-way line of Pacific Highway East Cascade Section 224 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CD);
- 90. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Northerly 189 feet, more or less, to the northwesterly corner of Document Number 2007-046203 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CD);
- 91. Thence along the northerly line of said deed and the easterly extension thereof, Northeasterly 77 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of Southern Pacific Railroad (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CD);
- 92. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 1,258 feet, more or less, to the southerly line of the plat "Bonnie View Acres Plat No. 4" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CD);
- 93. Thence along said southerly line, Easterly 1,050 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of 32nd Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CD);
- 94. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Northerly 191 feet, more or less, to the westerly extension of the northerly right-of-way line of Harvey Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25CA);
- 95. Thence along said westerly extension and the northerly right-of-way line of Harvey Street, Easterly 856 feet, more or less, to the northerly extension of the westerly line of the plat "Boly's Addition" (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DB);

- 96. Thence along said northerly extension and the westerly line of the plat "Boly's Addition" and the westerly right-of-way of an un-named Public Road, Southerly 684 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of said Public Road (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DC);
- 97. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Easterly 116 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of 36th Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DC);
- 98. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Southerly 10 feet, more or less, to the northerly line of Document Number 82-31253 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DC);
- 99. Thence along said northerly line, Westerly 116 feet, more or less, to the northwesterly corner of said deed, also being a point on the easterly line of Document Number 2003-111384 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DC);
- 100. Thence along said easterly line and the easterly line of Document Number 2003-111383 and the southerly extension thereof, Southerly 539 feet, more or less, to the Point of Beginning (Assessor's Map 1 1E 25DC).

#### **Excepting the following parcels:**

#### Parcel 1:

Beginning at the intersection of the southerly right-of-way line of Monroe Street and the westerly right-of-way line of 28th Street, being the northeasterly corner of Lot 2 of the plat "Spring Side Park", located in the Northwest One-Quarter of Section 36, Township 1 South, Range 1 East, Willamette Meridian, City of Milwaukie, Clackamas County, Oregon (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BA):

- 101. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line of Monroe Street, Northeasterly 653 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of Pacific Highway East Cascade Section 224 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BA);
- 102. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Southeasterly 770 feet, more or less, to the northwesterly right-of-way line of Oak Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 103. Thence along said northwesterly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 60 feet, more or less, to the northeasterly right-of-way line of Washington Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 104. Thence along said northeasterly right-of-way line, Northwesterly 365 feet, more or less, to a point which bears northwesterly 20 feet, more or less, from the southerly corner of Lot 16, Block 3 of the plat "Robert's Re-plat of J.R.W. Sellwood Addn.", also being on the northerly right-of-way line of Washington Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36AB);
- 105. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 1,731 feet, more or less, to the easterly line of Document Number 1996-095540 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BB);
- 106. Thence along said easterly line, Northwesterly 245 feet, more or less, to the northerly line of said deed (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BB);
- 107. Thence along said northerly line, Southwesterly 120 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of Southern Pacific Rail Road (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BB);
- 108. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 305 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of Monroe Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BB);
- 109. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 1,002 feet, more or less, to the Point of Beginning (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BA).

### Parcel 2:

Beginning at the northeasterly corner of the plat "Harrison Street Condominiums", being on the southerly right-of-way line of Harrison Street, located in the Northwest One-Quarter of Section 36, Township 1 South, Range 1 East, Willamette Meridian, City of Milwaukie, Clackamas County, Oregon (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BBS1):

- 110. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Easterly 828 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way line of Pacific Highway East Cascade Section 224 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BA);
- 111. Thence along said westerly right-of-way line, Southerly 514 feet, more or less, to the northerly right-of-way line of Monroe Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BA);
- 112. Thence along said northerly right-of-way line, Southwesterly 1,331 feet, more or less, to the easterly line of Document Number 1995-042318 (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BB);
- 113. Thence along said easterly line, Northwesterly 387 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of Southern Pacific Rail Road (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BB);
- 114. Thence along said easterly right-of-way line, Northeasterly 228 feet, more or less, to the southerly right-of-way line of Harrison Street (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BB);
- 115. Thence along said southerly right-of-way line, Easterly 382 feet, more or less, to the Point of Beginning (Assessor's Map 1 1E 36BB).

The above described tract of land contains 262 acres, more or less.

7/8/2016 REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR Michael Xal OREGON JANUARY 12, 2016 MICHAEL S. KALINA 89558PLS RENEWS: 6/30/17

#### PAGE 1 OF 11

### EXHIBIT B



PAGE 2 OF 11



PAGE 3 OF 11

MAP OF URBAN RENEWAL AREA A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 OF SECTION 25, THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 26, THE NE 1/4 AND SE 1/4 OF SECTION 35, THE NE 1/4 AND SE 1/4 AND SW 1/4 AND NW 1/4 OF SECTION 36, TIS, RIÉ, W.M., CITY OF MILWAUKIE, CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON MATCH LINE - SEE SHEET 2 EXCEPTION 3-SOUTHERLY 579'± PARCEL NO. - DN. 1997-071749 ORT SHEET (SEE PAGES 9 & 10) WASHINGTONST 13 WASHINGTON ST L2 29-SOUTHWESTERLY 'MINTHORN-PACIFIC HAVY E CASCADE SHEET NO. MINTHORN-1,695'± 1 LOT 15, BLOCK 74 SHEET NO. 2" LOT 18, BLOCK 74 "QUINCY ADDITION" ADAMS ST LOT 7, BLOCK 1 WASHINGTON ST 'MINTHORN-**AATCH** 5 SHEET NO. 28-NORTHWESTERLY 451'± <u>+</u> + 37TH LOT 26, BLOCK 74 20-SOUTHERLY 1,434'± | -19-NORTHWESTERLY 102' | 18-WESTERLY 80' 102 80 RAIL ROAD AVE 27-SOUTHWESTERLY 60'± "SECTION 224 LINE TABLE 25-EASTERLY 194'± BEARING AND DISTANCE LINE "MINTHORN-SHEET NO. 1" LOT 22, BLOCK 88 L1-14 EASTERLY 98'± L2-15 SOUTHERLY 50'± **EDISON ST** INTERNATIONAL WAY L3–16 EASTERLY 75'± 24-NORTHERLY 79'± L4-17 SOUTHERLY 140'± 21-SOUTHERLY 500'± "MINTHORN SHEET NO. 1" LOT 17, BLOCK 93 23-NORTHWESTERLY 556'± GROGAN AVE 22-WESTERLY 358'± PREPARED FOR SCALE 1'' = 500 FEET 7/8/2016 CITY OF MILWAUKIE REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR 6101 SE JOHNSON CREEK BLVD. MILWAUKIE, OR 97206 500 200 300 400 500 ٥ hopped Kal **EXHIBIT CITY OF MILWAUKIE URBAN RENEWAL AREA** B OREGON JANUARY 12, 2016 MICHAEL S. KALINA drwn: MSK AKS ENGINEERING & FORESTRY. LLC CHKD: NSW 12965 SW HERMAN RD, STE 100 89558PLS TUALATIN, OR 97062 AKS JOB: 5392 RENEWS: 6/30/17 P:503.563.6151 F:503.563.6152 aks-eng.com

PAGE 4 OF 11



PAGE 5 OF 11



PAGE 6 OF 11



PAGE 7 OF 11



PAGE 8 OF 11



PAGE 9 OF 11



PAGE 10 OF 11



#### PAGE 11 OF 11

### EXHIBIT B

